
BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Date: Wednesday, 3 March 2021 at 10.00 am 

Venue: Virtual Meeting 

 

Membership: 

Cllr J J Butt 
 
Reserve Members: 
 
Cllr D Farr and Cllr G Farquhar 

Cllr B Dion 
 

Cllr T Johnson 
 

   
 

All Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are summoned to attend this meeting to 
consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 
 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=289&MId=4385&Ver=4 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Michelle Cutler or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

lin
e
 a

n
d

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 
GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 
23 February 2021 
 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=289&MId=4385&Ver=4


 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Election of Chairman  

 To elect a Chairman of this meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 

 

2.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Members. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Protocol for Public Representation at Virtual  Meetings 5 - 8 

 In response to the Government’s guidance to limit the spread of 
Coronavirus and restrictions around the gathering of more than two people, 
the following items of business will be conducted as virtual hearings in 
accordance with Government Regulations and Article 16 of the Council’s 
Constitution. This approach has been taken to ensure the Council is 
compliant with the current restrictions and is not putting participants and 
members of the public at risk. 
 
A revised protocol for public representation at formal virtual meetings of the 
Licensing Sub Committee is included with the agenda sheet for this 
meeting. 
 

 

5.   Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road, Bournemouth BH1 4BH 9 - 56 

 An application has been received for a new premises licence for the 
premises known as Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road, 
Bournemouth BH1 4BH. 
 
The application is brought before the Licensing Sub Committee for 
determination. 
 
NOTE: This application was deferred by the Licensing Sub Committee at its 
meeting held on 17 February 2021. 
 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 LICENSING COMMITTEE AND SUB COMMITTEE 

PROTOCOL FOR PUBLIC REPRESENTATION AT VIRTUAL MEETINGS 

 

The existing protocol for public speaking has been adapted to apply in respect of virtual 

hearings under the Licensing Act 2003, the Gambling Act 2005, and Schedule 3 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 

2009).  

It has been amended in accordance with Article 16 of the Council’s Constitution: Covid-19 

Interim Decision Making Arrangements, and the requirements of The Local Authorities and 

Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 

Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. 

This includes applications relating to the licensing of alcohol, regulated entertainment, late night 

refreshment, gambling, and sex establishments, Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles, which 

are the responsibility of the Licensing Committee/Sub Committee to determine as set out in Part 3.3 

of the Council’s Constitution. 

1. The Chair welcomes everyone, matters of general housekeeping are dealt with, notification 
that the hearing may be recorded for live and subsequent broadcast on the Council’s website, 
reminder to switch mobile phones to silent, principles for managing formal skype meetings. 
 

2. The Chair identifies all parties present and makes introductions. 
 

3. Matters of general housekeeping are dealt with, notification that the hearing may be recorded 
for live and subsequent broadcast on the Council’s website, reminder to switch mobile phones 
to silent. 

 
4. All persons who have given notice of their intention to speak are identified.  

 
5. Identify if any person who wishes to withdraw a representation or wishes not to speak 

 
6. Chair explains proposed procedure and order of speaking for hearing as set out in Appendix 

A. All parties confirm agreement or make representations on procedure proposed. 
 

7. Licensing Officer’s report is presented. 
 

8. Parties present their representations in the order agreed.  
 

9. Parties who are speaking should not repeat the information which they have already given in 
writing in their representation. They will be able to expand on the written information given, 
provided the information remains relevant. Any addition information should be limited to the 
grounds of their representation(s). For example, if they are objecting on the grounds of Public 
Nuisance, then they should confine their comments to matters relating to Public Nuisance. 

 
10. Members of the Licensing Committee or Sub Committee may ask questions after each 

representation and at the end of all representations. Parties, will be allowed to ask questions 
through the Chair. 
 

5

Agenda Item 4



11. Following representations, the parties will be given the opportunity to sum up. Party who 
spoke first to go last.  The hearing will then conclude. 
 

12. Members will deliberate in private with the clerk and legal representative as appropriate 
present. 
 

13. The decision will be taken by the Committee and notification of the decision will be given 
within the period of five working days beginning with the day or the last day on which the 
hearing was held in accordance with the regulations. The notification of decision will include 
information about the right of appeal as appropriate. 
 

14. The Legal Advisor will advise the parties of any right of appeal as appropriate at the 
conclusion of the hearing. 

 
General points 
 

 The hearing may be adjourned at any time at the discretion of the Members  

 Members may amend the procedure at any time if they consider it to be in the public interest 
or in the interest of a fair hearing  

 The Sub Committee may decide to conduct all or part of a hearing in non public session where 
it considers the public interest in doing so, outweighs the public interest in the hearing.  

 The Chair may exclude any person from a hearing for being disruptive. 

 Meetings of the Licensing Committee in public session are recorded by the Council for live 
and subsequent broadcast on its website.  

 The hearing will take the form of a discussion. 

 Only persons (or their representatives) who have made an application, are subject to an 
application or have submitted a written representation to the Licensing Authority under the 
relevant Act are permitted to speak at the hearing. 

 Any further information to support an application or a representation must be submitted at 
least 5 working days prior to the Hearing. Any submissions submitted less than 24 hours 
before the hearing must be agreed by all parties at the Hearing, before it can be considered 

 If a party has informed the Authority that he does not intend to participate, or be represented 
at the hearing, or has failed to advise whether he intends to participate or not, the hearing may 
proceed in his absence 

 

For other matters in Part 3.3 of the Council’s Constitution which are the responsibility of the 

Licensing Committee, the procedures set out in Appendix 6 of the Council’s Constitution in 

relation to public questions, statements and petitions as amended by Article 16: Covid-19 

Interim Decision Making Arrangements and the provisions in The Local Authorities and 

Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 

Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 shall apply. 

This includes such matters as making recommendations on relevant policies, approving the level of 

fees charged by the Council, and making decisions on tariffs charged by the Public Carriage Trade.  

The Council’s Constitution can be accessed using the following link: 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1 

 

For further information please contact democraticservices@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

6

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
mailto:democraticservices@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

Appendix A 
 
Proposed procedure and order of speaking for virtual hearings  
 

 The Licensing Officer/Other Council Officer presents report 

 Applicant will make their Application 

 Questions of the Applicant by all parties, Members of the Committee/Sub-Committee 
to go first 

 Responsible Authorities and Other Persons will make their representations. 

 Questions of the Responsible Authorities and Other Persons. Members of the 
Committee/Sub-Committee to go first. 

 All parties will be given an opportunity to sum up (with the party who spoke last to go 
first). The hearing will then conclude. 

 Sub-Committee will deliberate in private with Legal Adviser and Clerk present. 
(Councillors new to Licensing may observe but will not take part in the decision 
making). 

 Notification of the Sub Committee’s decision will be given within the period of five 
working days beginning with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held in 
accordance with the regulations. The notification of decision will include information 
about the right of appeal as appropriate. 

 The Legal Adviser will advise parties of any right of appeal as appropriate at the 
conclusion of the hearing. 
 

 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road, Bournemouth, 
BH1 4BH 

Meeting date  17 February 2021 

Status  Public Report 

Executive summary  D & B Licensing Consultants, on behalf of Mr Abdullah, have made 
an application for a premises licence for a new convenience store, 
to provide off sales of alcohol, between the hours of 06:00 and 
23:00 each day of the week. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 Members are asked to decide whether to:-  

a) Grant the application for a premises licence as made; 

b) Refuse the application for a premises licence;  

c) Grant the premises licence subject to additional conditions. 

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to make a 
decision at the end of the hearing after all relevant parties 
have been given the opportunity to speak. Members must give 
full reasons for their decision. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

The Licensing Authority has received representations from 9 other 
persons, together with a letter signed by 26 persons, on the 
grounds that to grant this application it would undermine the 
prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public 
nuisance licensing objectives.  

The Licensing Authority may only consider aspects relevant to the 
application that have been raised in the representations.  

Where representations have been received from a responsible 
authority or any other person, and the concerns have not been 
resolved through mediation between all parties, the Scheme of 
Delegation set out in the Council’s Constitution states that these 
applications should be dealt with by the Licensing Sub-Committee. 

  

9

Agenda Item 5



Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor May Haines – Community Safety 

Corporate Director  Kate Ryan – Corporate Director for Environment & Community 

Report Authors Sarah Rogers – Senior Licensing Officer 

Wards  Boscombe West 

Classification  For Decision  
Title:  

Background 

1. An application for a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 was made on 
the 5th January 2021.  A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 1. 

2. A plan showing the location of the premises is attached at Appendix 2. 

Consultation 

3. The application was served on all responsible authorities and the applicant 
confirmed that the statutory notices were displayed on site and published in the local 
newspaper. 

4. The application prompted 9 representations from other persons under the prevention 
of crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives.  In 
addition, a letter was signed by 26 persons.  A copy of the representations received, 
and petition letter is attached at Appendices 3 and 4. 

5. Environmental Health and Dorset Police Officers have agreed for the following 
conditions to replace those offered in the application, should the application be 
granted:- 

 No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed 
from or placed in outside areas between 23:00 and 07:00 on the following 
day. 
 

 No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the 
premises shall take place between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 on the 
following day. 

 

 No deliveries to the premises shall take place between the hours of 23:00 and 
07:00 on the following day. 

 

 No beers/lager/cider shall be sold above 6.5% ABV. 
 

 No single cans of beer/lager/cider shall be sold. 
 
6. No Representations were received from any of the other responsible authorities. 

  

10



Options Appraisal 

7. Before making a decision, Members are asked to consider the following matters: 

•  The representations made by or on behalf of the other persons.  

•  The submissions made by or made on behalf of the applicant. 

•  The relevant licensing objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder 
and prevention of public nuisance 

•  The Licensing Act 2003, appropriate Regulations, Statutory Revised Guidance 
issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 – April 2018 and the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 

Summary of financial implications 

8. N/A 

Summary of legal implications 

9. If Members decide to refuse the application or attach conditions to the licence which 
the applicant does not agree to, the applicant may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court 
within a period of 21 days beginning with the day that the applicant is notified, in 
writing, of the decision. 

Summary of human resources implications 

10. N/A 

Summary of sustainability impact 

11. N/A 

Summary of public health implications 

12. N/A 

Summary of equality implications 

13. N/A 

Summary of risk assessment 

14. N/A 

Background papers 

BCP Council – Statement of Licensing Policy –  
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licences-and-
permits/Documents/Licensing/solp-2020.pdf 

Hearing Regulations – https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made 

Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 – 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment 
_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act
_ 2003__April_2018_.pdf 

11

https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licences-and-permits/Documents/Licensing/solp-2020.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licences-and-permits/Documents/Licensing/solp-2020.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_%202003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_%202003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_%202003__April_2018_.pdf


Appendices   

1 – Copy Application 

2 – Location Map 

3 – Copy of Representations  

4 – Copy Petition  

 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not 
limited liability partnerships:  
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:  

 • does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or  
 • is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable 
 activity.  

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder 
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.  
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing 
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing 
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by 
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work 
checking service (see below). 
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 

 • An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the 
 holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see 
 note below about which sections of the passport to copy].  

 • An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport 
 as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national 
 of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  
 • A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European  
 Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the 
 holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their  
 stay in the UK. 

 • A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay 
 indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

• A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
 indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in 
 the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National  
 Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.  

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
 giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency 
 or a previous employer. 

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in 
 combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their  
 name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
 official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a  
 Government agency or a previous employer. 

26



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
 work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a  
 licensable activity.  

• A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
 holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to  
 the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

• A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic 
 Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or 
 residence. 

• A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder 
 with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not  
 subject  to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity  
 when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance  
 number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)  
 of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a  person who is not a national of a  
 European Economic Area  state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has  
 derivative rights of residence.  

• Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK 
 with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or  
 reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration  
 decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number. 

• Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but 
 who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in 
 the UK including:-  

• evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport, 
• evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage 
 certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and 
• evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one 
 of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months: 

(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer, 
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank, 
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or 
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements. 

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide 
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the 
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the 
following pages should be provided:- 
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality; 
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph; 
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature; 
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and 
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to 
work.  
 

27



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration 
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be 
determined until you have complied with this guidance.  
  
 Home Office online right to work checking service 
  
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by 
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.  
  
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in 
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority 
to carry out the check.  
  
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the 
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. 
  
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can 
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation 
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service 
should submit copy documents as set out above.  
 

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

28



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience 
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and 
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman 
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

29



30



31



Retail Floor Plan 586-588 Christchurch Road
l 

Bournemouth. BH1 4BH 

� 

FX 

W/C 

Store 

t 
I 

FX .................. . 

FSE ................ .. 

Staff Area 

r
==

,  Freezer 

121 
i� 

Beer / Lager / Cider 

___,,,, 
Wine Display 

FX/FSE 

Staff Area 

B ke Store 

I stair Well I 

1J 

'Tl 
0 
0 
a. 

• 

Ambient Food. 

t 

I Tinned Food I j Shelf . 
- :Jr'.) ;ore

Access to apartments 

Alcohol Licensed Area 

CCTV 

Fire Exit. 

Fire Safety Equipment 

Check Out Area with Spirits Behind 
� 

;r ' 
I, 

FX/FSEI 
I 

I I Ambient Food 

� 

� 

Poultry 

"t 
II 

'"' ., 

Twin Door
Entrance 
And Exit 32



© Crown copyright and database rights 2021

OS 100000019829 BCP Council

Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road

Date: 04 February 2021
Creator: Sarah Rogers

Scale: 1:2000 @ A4

Application for a Premises Licence

33



T
his page is intentionally left blank

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 The Protection of Children from Harm: 
Whenever a new outlet for alcohol is opened, particularly when it is combined with the sale of 
household goods and foodstuffs, there is a danger that young people who are under-age will try 
to purchase alcohol and the staff will not be trained to spot and challenge those who are under- 
age.   
There is also the potential for proxy sales to take place, again if staff are not alert to that 
potential.  This situation clearly can result in underage young people and children being started 
on a harmful pathway. 
 I do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons: 
N/A 

 
I declare that the information I have provided is true and correct. 

 
 

Signed ......Jane Kelly............................                  Dated ........25.01.21........................ 
 

44



OBJECTION TO APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENSING 
 
Name: Nancy Curtis 
Address:   
Email address:  
Contact phone no:  
 
Application details: licence for the sale of alcohol (for consumption off the premises) between 6am and 
11pm 
Application reference: 181879 
Name of premises: Malinka Market 
Address of premises: 586-588 Christchurch Road, Boscombe BH1 4BH 
 
Reasons for objection 
 
Prevention of crime and disorder: allowing alcohol sales from 6am to 11pm at this store would be a very 
likely cause of crime and disorder.  There are benches directly outside the store and this would 
encourage and facilitate street drinking (already a problem in that area) resulting in people becoming 
intoxicated and behaviour likely to cause public disorder and crimes such as harassment of passers by, 
vandalism, and fighting amongst the groups of drinkers which could result in serious injury. 
 
Prevention of public nuisance: As stated above, the fact there are benches outside the store would cause 
street drinkers to congregate in that area.  Boscombe already has a street drinking problem and we're 
this application to be granted, it would exacerbate the situation.  I believe that the benches would make 
this a 'gathering area' thereby causing an intense nuisance due to anti-social behaviour and intimidation 
etc.  This would be particularly worrying for the nearby residential streets. 
 
Public safety: Again, this is covered in both points above but to reiterate, the likely gathering of street 
drinkers and the ensuing anti-social and possibly violent behaviour would, in my view, make the area 
unsafe for others - particularly relevant for those living in the nearby streets. 
 
Protection of children: Not relevant to this objection as presumably there would be no children out this 
late. 
 
Issue of the objector's details: I am happy for my details to be used. 
 
Nancy Curtis 
 

 
 

45



This page is intentionally left blank

46



47



48



49



This page is intentionally left blank

50



PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION

MALINKA MARKET
568-588 CHRISTCHURCH ROAD
BOSCOMBE, BOURNEMOUTH

SUBMISSION ON BEHALF OF THOSE WHO HAVE MADE REPRESENTATIONS

In brief summary, those who have made representations are concerned about the 
impact a grant of new licence permitting the sale of alcohol in this locality will have 
on the prevention of crime and disorder, public nuisance and public safety.

Up until November 2020, the Statement of Licensing Policy in force included a 
cumulative impact policy that covered Boscombe (and other parts of former Borough 
of Bournemouth).

The policy adopted by BCP Council late last year did not include such a policy for 
any part of the Council's area because no cumulative impact assessment had been 
undertaken as required by section 5A of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended). It is 
understood that the reason that no such assessments have been undertaken was 
principally the police were unable to provide statistical evidence as to the extent that 
crime and antisocial behaviour was linked to the consumption of alcohol by either the 
perpetrator or the victim.

Nevertheless, this does not prevent the Licensing Sub-Committee from refusing an 
application for the grant of new licence if it considers that to do so would add to the 
cumulative impact of licensed premises in a particular locality. This would however 
require an evidential basis that there is indeed a problem that is linked to the sheer 
number of licensed premises in the area.

That evidential base will be as follows:

Evidence from local residents who have made representations about the extent of 
alcohol related crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour in Boscombe.

Evidence from publicly available information from the Police at this link:

https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/dorset-police/bournemouth-east-east/

The following screen shots have been taken from that link:

The first shows the total number of reported crimes in December 2020 in East 
Bournemouth being 393 (an average of over 10 a day) of which anti-social behaviour 
amounted to 149 incidents and violent crime a close second at 105.

Supporting submission from Mr Philip Day, dated 12 February 2021

51



Page 2 of 5

The next screenshot shows a more detailed breakdown in Boscombe centre and it 
can clearly be seen that the most incidents occur in the pedestrianised area which is 
precisely where the application site lies.

52



Page 3 of 5

This third screenshot shows the trend over the last three years.  

It will be submitted that there has been no significant change in the level of anti-
social behaviour or violent crime over this entire period.  Indeed, it is also noticeable 
that the effect of the various “lockdowns” in the last year that have led to the effective 
closure of the “night-time economy” has made no difference to the statistics – 
members who have served on the sub-committee will recall that previous statistics 
produced by the police in support of a cumulative impact policy across Bournemouth 
showed that whilst in other areas (e.g. Old Christchurch Road and Charminster), the 
majority of relevant offences occurred after 11 p.m. at night, this was not true in 
Boscombe.

It must therefore follow that alcohol related incidents of crime, disorder and anti-
social behaviour can only be linked to the proliferation of off-licensed premises and 
not to the bars and late-night venues that operate in the area.

There are a significant number of alcohol-licensed premises in the locality.

I have been provided with the following list (please note that a number of those 
premises that are “on-licensed” are also permitted to sell alcohol for consumption off 
the premises):

Licensed premises in the area:

1. Ecomini -off licence shop. 457 Christchurch Road, BH1 4AD.
2. Crescent Food Hall - off licence shop. 497 Christchurch Road, BH1 4AE
3. Santa Cruz Cafe - 511 Christchurch Road, BH1 4AG
4. Romanian Food Shop - off licence - 515 Christchurch Road, BH1 4AG

53



Page 4 of 5

5. Chaplin’s & The Cellar Bar. 529 Christchurch Road, BH1 4AG
6. Booze Vegas - off licence shop. 537 Christchurch Road, BH1 4AG
7. Pizzeria Via Roma, 522 Christchurch Road, BH1 4BE
8. Polish Market - off licence shop, 532-534 Christchurch Road,BH1 4BE
9. Food plus grocery store- off licence shop, 553 Christchurch Road, BH1 4HA
10. Bosc Vegas - 24h off licence shop, 557 Christchurch Road, BH1 4AH
11. The Social Grill, 9-11 Sea Road, BH5 1DH
12. Aldi- off licence shop, 9-23 Palmerston Road, BH1 4DB
13. Lidl- off licence shop, 600 Christchurch Road, BH1 4SX,
14. Sainsburys- off licence shop, 637-641 Christchurch Road, BH1 4AP
15. Boscombe Convenience and off licence shop, 671 Christchurch Road, BH7 6AA,
16. O2 Academy Bournemouth, 570 Christchurch Road, BH1 4BH
17. Londris shop at petrol station 25-33 Palmerston Rd, Boscombe, Bournemouth 
BH1 4HN
18. Sea Road Food& Wine - off licence shop, 20 Sea Rd, Boscombe, Bournemouth 
BH5 1DD
19.Mary’s delicatessen, 1 Ashley Rd, Boscombe, Bournemouth BH1 4LE
20. Agua na Boca, 667 Christchurch Rd, Boscombe, Bournemouth BH7 6AA
21. Marroy’s Bar, 682 Christchurch Rd, Boscombe, Bournemouth BH7 6BT
22. Nisa Local - off licence shop, 724 Christchurch Rd, Boscombe, Bournemouth 
BH7 6BZ

As you can see there is 14 off licence shops within 300 yard radius.

This list appears to be incomplete in that it does not include the recent grant of a 
licence for Boscombe Pier (which is rather more than 300 yards from the application 
site) nor the Riviera Bar which is currently closed.

The granting of another “off-licence” in the locality and more to the point, in this 
specific location will inevitably lead to a greater availability of alcohol which will in 
itself exacerbate the existing problems in the centre of Boscombe that are related to 
street drinkers.

It is also likely to lead to increased competition between existing off-licences to try 
and maintain market share.  Whilst this might be regarded as a good thing from the 
perspective of the consumer, the prospect of existing outlets lowering their prices in 
order to try and maintain market share will result in not only a greater availability of 
alcohol generally but also make it easier for those who have alcohol dependency to 
afford to buy more.

In that regard, the conditions that appear to have been agreed with the police will not 
in practical terms address the problems of street drinkers.  The majority of beers and 
lagers have a strength of over 6.5% ABV are craft beers that are expensive and not 
bought by street drinkers.  As anyone familiar with the habits of such persons will tell 
you, they prefer to buy large (2 or 3 litre) bottles of cider or small bottles of spirits, in 
particular cheap vodka.   

There is also an alcohol rehab unit at 17 Carysford Road, BH1 1EJ less than half a 
mile away from the application site and that is also a cause for concern.

54



Page 5 of 5

Bournemouth Borough Council and now BCP Council are very well aware of the 
particular (if not unique) problems that Boscombe has and in particular this specific 
area and has invested not inconsiderable sums of money in seeking to rejuvenate 
and revitalise the locality to improve the lot of those who live and work there.

The grant of this application would be a detrimental step that is likely to undermine 
the licensing objectives of preventing crime and disorder (fuelled by alcohol abuse), 
preventing public nuisance (caused by those who abuse alcohol) and public safety 
(those who have to run the daily gamut of street drinkers and the like who are sadly 
a feature of this locality).

The sub-committee is therefore invited to refuse this application.

Philip Day
Laceys Solicitors LLP
9 Poole Road
Bournemouth 
BH2 5QR

12th February 2021  

55



This page is intentionally left blank

56


	Agenda
	4 Protocol for Public Representation at Virtual  Meetings
	5 Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road, Bournemouth BH1 4BH
	Enc. 1 for Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road, Bournemouth, BH1 4BH, 17/02/2021 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Enc. 2 for Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road, Bournemouth, BH1 4BH, 17/02/2021 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Enc. 3 for Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road, Bournemouth, BH1 4BH, 17/02/2021 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Enc. 4 for Malinka Market, 586-588 Christchurch Road, Bournemouth, BH1 4BH, 17/02/2021 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Supporting submission Mr Philip Day dated 12.2.21




